
Village of Spring Lake 

Council Work Session Minutes  

November 12, 2018 

7:00 p.m. 

102 West Savidge Street (Upstairs Conference Room) 

Spring Lake, MI 49456 

President Powers called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

1. Commercial Facilities Tax (CFT) Exemption Discussion (Joy Gaasch, 

Chamber President) 

As part of our ongoing Economic Development discussions related (but not 

limited) to the Epicurean Village, the prospect of offering CFT tax incentives 

was discussed at a staff level.  There are pros and cons to incentivizing 

developers to locate with any local governmental unit (LGU).  Burns 

explained what had been discussed with local developers.  Ms. Gaasch 

said that one of the keys was communities having a streamlined review 

process, so with RRC, the Village had already been working on it.  Burns said 

that Zoning Administrator, Lukas Hill, had found some great charts and 

tables from other communities explaining how to grant tax exemptions on 

what was equitable, based on investment and job creation.  Burns said the 

Village wanted to plant a seed with Council regarding this request from 

local developers.  Ms. Gaasch said that the State Education Tax could only 

be exempt for 6 years.  Powers asked if this incentive process could be 

handled buy Burns and Hinga.  Burns said that it would probably be a team, 

which might include Howland, Hill, Ms. Gaasch and maybe Elizabeth, who 

might be coming on board at the Chamber.  Council discussed the process 

along with the pros and cons of what this might mean for the Village and 

agreed they would like to pursue this process.        

 

2. N. Lake Street Sewer Repair (Wally Delamater) 

There is a portion of sanitary sewer along N. Lake that has collapsed.  Wally 

has obtained estimates from Clarence to perform the repair.  Delamater 

reported that, as part of the SAW grant, sanitary sewer lines were televised, 

and N. Lake was in particularly bad shape and needed to be repaired 

sooner rather than later.  Delamater shared photos and video of the sewer 

main and how it did not flow as it should and explained that repairs would 

have to wait until after the first of the year because of it being such a large 

area and cold temperatures it would not be able to be repaved until spring, 



but it would monitor weekly until repaired.  TePastte asked if both Village 

and Township used this sewer main.  Delamater said that 98% of the use 

came from Village residents.          

 

3. S. Lake Street Pump Repair (Wally Delamater) 

Of the two pumps in the S. Lake Street lift station, one is not performing, 

thereby eliminating any redundancy in the pumping capabilities.  Wally has 

obtained a quote from Kennedy Pumps to replace the pumps with today’s 

technology.  Delamater said they needed more information regarding the 

lift station and were going to hold off until later in this fiscal year for the 

repairs.  Delamater said this was routine maintenance and had been 

budgeted for.   

 

4. Tanglefoot Analysis 

Due to construction along Exchange Street in 2019, staff contemplated the 

financial ramifications of closing Tanglefoot Park for the 2019 season.  At this 

time, only five seasonal campers have indicated that they would consider 

“toughing it out” while the force main is being installed.  When considering 

noise (24-hour dewatering), vibration, access, dirt and other rather 

unpleasant variables, Council would need to render a policy decision on 

whether or not to close Tanglefoot Park for the 2019 season.  The Parks & 

Recreation committee did not have a quorum on November 5th in order 

to offer their recommendation.  However, Council liaison Susan Petrus was 

in attendance heard the viewpoints of those who did attend.   

 

Delamater reported that five (5) homes, plus Tanglefoot Park, would be 

directly impacted by the construction activity and that Cutler Street’s south 

end would be where the boring rig would be set up to bore across the river 

to Grand Haven.  Delamater said this project would have a high impact on 

the area with continual de-watering of the construction site, Exchange 

Street would be completely shut down, Division totally disappearing and 

Park Street having limited access, and, in a perfect world, the project would 

be finished by the beginning of July.    Delamater said that a couple blocks 

away, another project was being planned, so there was a possibility that 2 

projects might be going on at one time, so they would be working with 

MDOT for detour routes and the impact of that traffic.  Delamater said that 

he and Burns had discussed putting out a daily progress/information report 

through Constant Contact, sharing information such as where residents can 

put their trash for pickups, mail deliveries, and any other information that 



would be helpful to residents.  Burns said that at the Community 

Engagement on November 20th, they would be asking residents if they 

would like to sign up for this daily report.   

 

Hinga went over the Tanglefoot Analysis spread sheet he had created that 

included different scenarios, such as no transients, and/or a lesser number 

of seasonal residents and closing completely.  Hanks said that the Finance 

Committee recommended closing the park completely for the 2019 

season.  Council agreed that it did not make good fiscal sense to keep the 

park open for the 2019 season and asked that this to be added to the 

Consent Agenda.  Burns said she would put a motion together.  Miller asked 

if the boat docks would be open.  Burns said that the docks would not be 

open due to the potential for damage to boats and no available parking.   

 

5. Board & Committee Appointments 

The following is a list of those board/committee appointments expiring in 

November.  Each member received an application and invitation to 

reapply for their seat.  Lou Draeger, Vince Blake & Jane Ladley have asked 

not to be reappointed. 

 

Board/Committee                                 Name 

DDA                                                         Lou Draeger 

DDA                                                         Vince Blake 

DDA                                                         Jim Willison 

DDA                                                         Gary Hanks 

Historic Conservation Commission Sherron Collins 

Historic Conservation Commission      Jane Ladley 

Historic Conservation Commission       vacancy 

Parks & Recreation Commission Erik Poel  

Planning Commission                            Richard Martinus 

Planning Commission                       Chip Bohnhoff 

Planning Commission                            Scott VanStrate 

ZBA                                                       Ernie Petrus 

ZBA                                                           Scott VanStrate 

ZBA                                                           Vince Blake 

 

The following new applications have been received for 

boards/committees: 

 



DDA                                                          Lesley VanLeeuwen-Vega 

DDA                                                          Bruce Callen                                                       

ZBA                                                            Luke DeSmet 

 

Burns shared the names of those board members that were stepping down, 

made recommendations for those that were asking to be reappointed and 

residents that had applied for the open seats.  Burns also said she would like 

to present Lou Draeger with a “You Make the Difference” award at the 

December meeting for his involvement in the Village over the last four 

decades.  Council agreed and asked for this to be added to the Consent 

Agenda.       

  

6. Letter of Limited Engagement 

With the results of the recent election indicating that RMJ is here to stay, it 

is time to contemplate how to regulate such facilities.  Communities from 

throughout the state have engaged the services of Dickinson Wright to 

draft uniform language to address this issue.  Please find enclosed a memo 

written by Grand Haven Charter Township Manager Bill Cargo to his Board 

of Trustees that essentially summarizes what will be happening in NW 

Ottawa County.  The City of Grand Haven will be contemplating this at their 

November meeting, as will Ferrysburg and Spring Lake Township.   

 

Burns explained that surrounding communities were contemplating how to 

regulate facilities and had engaged the services of Dickinson Wright to 

draft language to address this issue and asked Council if they would like to 

be included in this Letter of Limited Engagement.  Council agreed to add 

this to the Consent Agenda and would discuss what this looked like for the 

Village at the December meeting.      

 

7. NOCH Ambulance Agreement 

The agreement with NOCH for ambulance service expires on 12/31/18; this 

is a housekeeping item to extend the agreement to 2021. 

 

Burns explained that the ambulance service agreement would expire at 

the end of December.  TePastte, who served on this committee, 

recommended extending the agreement through 2021.  Council agreed 

and asked that this be placed on the Consent Agenda.   

 

8. Street Light Contract 



The corner of Exchange & Buchanan currently has no street light.  Six 

months out of the year, it is very dark at that intersection during SLV & SLT 

public meetings.  For safety reasons, staff is recommending installing a street 

light at that intersection. 

 

Burns explained that there had been requests for a street light at Exchange 

& Buchanan and that for safety reasons, staff recommended installing a 

light at that intersection.  Council agreed with staff’s recommendation and 

asked for this to be added to the Consent Agenda.   

 

9. Ottawa County IT Service Agreement 

Ottawa County has provided a new agreement for Local Unit Services. Our 

agreement is out-of-date.  With the addition of new organizations, OC 

wants to standardize the agreement and provide a separate exhibit to 

detail the services if they are different. The differences are in the annual 

fixed costs hosted vs non-hosted. 

 

Burns explained that this agreement had been standardized and that the 

Village’s agreement needed to be updated.  Council agreed to add this 

item to the Consent Agenda.     

 

10. Waste Haulers Licensing 

Approval of waste hauling licenses is typically a housekeeping item. 

 

Licensed Waste Haulers in the Village 
 Republic/Allied 

Waste 
231-375-2070 

Kuerth 
Disposal 

231-744-4967 

Waste 
Management 
616-724-2148 

Trash Collection 
90-96 Gallon 

Container 
$19.55/month $19.00/month $16.00/month 

Curbside Recycling 
With Container 

Service 

Included 
 

Included 
 

$6.50/month per 
bin 

Bag Service 
$1.50/bag + 
$8.80/month 

admin 

$4.00/bag 
(100 bags/box) 

$2.50/bag + 
$5.92/month 

admin 

Curbside Recycling 
With Bag Service 

 $3.00/month  

Yard Waste 
$10.50/month 

(bag) 
$90.00/season 

$12.50/month + 
$25 activation fee 



$12.50/month 
(cart) 

Christmas Trees Included Included Included 

Spring/Fall Clean-up No Charge No Charge No Charge 

   

Burns explained that some of the pricing had gone up due to China’s tariffs 

on recycling.  Council had no objections and asked that this be added to 

the Consent Agenda.      

     

11. Budget Amendments (Marv Hinga) 

 

Hinga explained the Budget Amendments that were mostly moving money 

between expense line items in major streets, DPW, Mill Point Park, etc. and 

that the net change for each department was zero.  Hinga explained that 

there would be budget adjustments, later, for Tanglefoot that would have 

no offsets.  Hanks said that the Finance Committee had no comments on 

the budget adjustments.  Council agreed and asked to add this to the 

Consent Agenda.         

   

12. Communications 

• Calendar - SLDL 

• Complaint – SLDL  

• Correspondence – SLDL - Burns reported that a letter had been received 

from the Library opting out of the TIF districts and that this letter had been 

written because the Township was looking at creating a Corridor 

Improvement District.  Burns shared that she and Gallagher had met with 

two members of the Library Board and the meeting had not gone well, 

but they would continue conversations.    

• Exchange Street Project Update 

• MML – Top 13 Legal Cases Consequential to Michigan Municipalities – 

Burns shared that she had a couple copies of these legal cases if 

anyone was interested in reading them. 

• Pavement Warranty Information 

 

Burns reported that 2019 would be the Village’s Sequential but she had not 

heard anything in quite a while.  Miller said that due to the road 

construction, they were planning to have a special event later in the year.      

 

Burns shared that she had met with Kim VanKampen on October 31st and 

Ms. VanKampen was moving forward with winter demolition and spring 



construction for the property next to Village Hall and she had a different 

vendor for the Citco building and was looking into a Brownfield loan for that 

project.  Burns reported that the blue victorian home would be moved to 

the south end of Division instead of the Savidge Street corner, and that Ms. 

VanKampen was planning to keep the Bilz Pool & Spa building.  Burns also 

reported that Peel Brothers were in the process of purchasing the house on 

the corner of Park and Exchange and that fundraising for Art in the Village, 

specifically the mural on the back of the travel agency, was getting started. 

          

13. Minutes 

Minutes of the October 8, 2018 Work Session and October 15, 2018 regular 

meeting were attached for review.  Council asked that they be placed on 

the Consent Agenda. 

 

14. Public Comment 

Council Work Sessions are open to the public, and as such, the public is 

invited to speak at the end of each meeting.  Each speaker should limit 

their comments to 3 minutes. 

 

Darcy Dye thanked Council for all their hard work. 

 

Lee Schuitema said that if Tanglefoot Park was going to be closed for the 

season, he felt that some major improvements should be made during that 

time.  Powers said he had also thought about that.  Burns said that the 

perfect time to discuss Tanglefoot Parks future would be during a joint 

meeting between Council, the Parks & Rec. Board and the DDA.   

   

15. Adjournment: There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 

8:15 p.m. 

 

 

 

______________________________           ______________________________ 

Mark Powers, Village President           Maryann Fonkert, Deputy Clerk 


